
1 
 

PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
                                W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  
 
                                                Executive Committee  

100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 
Polk County Government Center - County Board Room 

Minutes of Executive Committee from Tuesday, July 17, 2018 at 2:00 p.m. 
 

Committee Members present:  Dean Johansen, Jay Luke, Brian Masters, John Bonneprise, and Chris 
Nelson.  

Others present: Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk; Jeff Fuge, Interim Administrator/Corporation Counsel; 
Andrea Jerrick, Deputy County Administrator; Emil Norby, Highway Commissioner;  Debbie Peterson, 
Director Parks & Buildings; Tracy LaBlanc, Supervisor; members of the public, and member of the press.  

Chairman Johansen called the meeting to order at 2:06 p.m. 

Chairman Johansen called for motion to adopt the agenda. Motion (Luke/Bonneprise) to adopt the July 
17, 2018 agenda as published.  Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt the 
agenda. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 

Chairman Johansen called for motion to adopt the June 12, 2018 minutes of Executive Committee. 
Motion (Masters/Luke) to adopt the minutes of June 12, 2018 as published. Motion to adopt minutes as 
published carried by unanimous voice vote.  

Time was given for public comment.   No public comment was received. 

Chairman Johansen declared that Item 6 on agenda: Update Concerning Development of Proposed Plan 
for Rebuild of Fairgrounds Grandstand would be addressed after public comment.  Committee received 
information regarding Grandstand Proposals and options from Debbie Peterson, Director Parks & 
Buildings. Committee received information regarding various estimates from Dale Wood, representative 
from Fair Board.  Chairman Johansen directed Fair Board to present detailed written plan(s) and costs 
for entire project  with detail as to which costs Fair Board will cover at August 2018 County Board 
meeting. Committee requested that financing information and funding plan from Polk County be 
provided by Administration at the County Board meeting.  

Recommendation concerning Resolution No. 64-18: Resolution to Amend Authorization for Contingency 
Expenditures of Highway Facility Improvement Project.  Chairman Johansen called upon Interim 
Administrator Fuge to provide information to the Committee regarding resolution.  Committee received 
updated change order tracking report from Deputy Administrator Jerrick. Motion (Nelson/Luke) to 
approve Resolution No. 64-18: Resolution to Amend Authorization for Contingency Expenditures of 
Highway Facility Improvement Project and recommend to County Board. Chairman Johansen called for a 
voice vote on the motion to approve and recommend Resolution No. 64-18 to the County Board for 
passage. Motion to approve and recommend Resolution No. 64-18 to the County Board carried by  

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


2 
 

unanimous voice vote.  

Recommendation concerning Resolution No. 62-18: Resolution to Apply Main Contingency Funds for 
Improvements to Bishop Building (Building Two) for the Polk County Highway Garage Public 
Improvement Project.  Chairman Johansen called upon Highway Commissioner Norby to provide 
information to the Committee regarding resolution.  Resolution 62-18 will be amended at County Board 
meeting to include amount of $1,051.00 on Lines 27 and 32.   

Motion (Masters/Johansen) to approve Resolution No. 62-18: Resolution to Apply Main Contingency 
Funds for Improvements to Bishop Building (Building Two) for the Polk County Highway Garage Public 
Improvement Project t and recommend to County Board. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on 
the motion to approve and recommend Resolution No. 62-18 to the County Board for passage. Motion 
to approve and recommend Resolution No. 62-18 to the County Board carried by unanimous voice vote.  

Recommendation concerning highway facility Bid Package 4, Resolution No. 63-18: Resolution to Award 
Construction Contracts for Highway Facility Project – Bid Package #4 (Low Voltage, Landscaping and 
Demolition of Existing Highway Shop).  Chairman Johansen called upon Highway Commissioner Norby 
for information regarding Bid Package #4. Motion (Bonneprise/Luke) to approve low bids on Resolution 
No. 63-18: Resolution to Award Construction Contracts for Highway Facility Project – Bid Package #4 
(Low Voltage, Landscaping and Demolition of Existing Highway Shop) and recommend to County Board. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to approve and recommend Resolution No. 63-
18 to the County Board for passage. Motion to approve bid amounts and recommend Resolution No. 
63-18 to the County Board carried by unanimous voice vote.  

Chairman Johansen called for motion to convene in closed session at 2:55 p.m.  Motion 
(Masters/Bonneprise) to convene in closed session for closed session items noted on agenda. Chairman 
Johansen called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.   

Chairman Johansen called for a recess at 2:55 p.m. Chairman Johansen called meeting into closed 
session at 3:02 p.m. 

*CLOSED SESSION* 3:02 p.m.    - (Minutes separate and under seal) 

*Reconvened in Open Session at 4:18 p.m. * 

 Recommendation concerning Resolution No. 59-18: Resolution Concerning County Labor and Materials 
Used in Highway Facility Project.  Chairman Johansen called upon Interim Administrator Fuge to provide 
information to the Committee regarding resolution.  Motion Luke/Nelson to amend Resolution 59-18, 
striking the word “owner” on line 28 of resolution.  Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on said 
amendment. Motion to amend Resolution No. 59-18 carried by unanimous voice vote.  

Motion (Luke/Nelson) to approve Resolution No. 59-18: Resolution Concerning County Labor and 
Materials Used in Highway Facility Project and recommend to County Board. Chairman Johansen called 
for a voice vote on the motion to approve and recommend Resolution No. 59-18 as amended to the 



3 
 

County Board for passage. Motion to approve and recommend Resolution No. 59-18 to the County 
Board as amended carried by unanimous voice vote.  

Chairman Johansen declared meeting back in open session at 4:18 p.m. 

Future meeting: 

August 7, 2018 

Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adjourn. Motion (Bonneprise/Johansen) to adjourn. Motion 
carried by unanimous voice vote. Chairman Johansen declared meeting adjourned at 4:20 p.m. 
                 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

Sharon E. Jorgenson 
County Clerk 
 

 

 



PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson @co.polk.wi.us 

Agenda and Notice of Meeting 
Polk County Executive Committee 

Polk County Government Center, County Board Room 
100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 

Tuesday, July 17, 2018 at 2:00 p.m. 
 

A quorum of the County Board may be present. 
 
Order of Business: (The Committee may take up any subject matter noticed herein at any time 
during the meeting regardless of the location of such subject matter on the meeting notice at the time 
of issuance.) 
 
1. Call to Order 
2. Adoption of the Agenda 
3. Adoption of the Minutes of the June 12, 2018 meeting 
4. Public Comments  
5. Highway Facility Construction Project –  

a. Receipt of Information and Discussion Concerning Progress of Construction Project 
b. Recommendation on Resolutions 

i. To Increase Authorization for Construction Contingency – Resolution No. 
64-18: Resolution to Amend Authorization for Contingency Expenditures of 
Highway Facility Improvement Project   

ii. Resolution No. 62-18: Resolution to Apply Main Facility Contingency Funds 
for Improvements to Bishop Building (Building Two) for the Polk County 
Highway Garage Public Improvement Project. 

iii. Resolution No. 63-18: Resolution to Award Construction Contracts for 
Highway Facility Project – Bid Package #4 (Low Voltage, Landscaping and 
Demolition of existing Highway Shop) 

iv. Ratification of Change Order Concerning Dirt Work at Highway Facility – 
Resolution 59-18: Resolution Concerning County Labor and Materials Used 
in Highway Facility Project 
 
Closed Session – 19.85(1)(g) for the purpose of receiving a legal opinion 
from Corporation Counsel which the County Board may adopt with respect to 
anticipated claims concerning the construction of the highway facility.   
Following said closed session, the committee may convene in open session or 
closed session on subject matters and purposes noticed on this agenda.  

6. Update Concerning Development of Proposed Plan for Rebuild of Fairgrounds Grandstand 
7. Concerning the Selection of County Administrator 

a. Review Resumes/Applications for Position of County Administrator 
 

Closed Session;  Pursuant to Wisconsin Statute Sections 19.36 (10)(d) and 
19.85(1)(c) and (e), the Committee may convene in closed session for the purpose of 
deliberating on and formulating recommendations to be provided to the County 

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


Board of Supervisors concerning the employment and selection of the 
County  Administrator.  Any action of the committee on such matter will remain 
closed and or sealed, pursuant to Sections 19.36 (10)(d) and 19.85(1)(c) and (e), until 
the County Board of Supervisors takes action to finalize said employment offer and 
employment agreement.  
 

Following said closed session, the Committee will reconvene in open session to consider 
and/act on any matter noticed herein, including reconvening in closed session as herein 
noticed.   

8. Review of Performance of Interim County Administrator 
 
Closed Session – Pursuant to Wisconsin Statute Section Statute Sections 19.36 (10)(d) and 
19.85(1)(c), the committee may convene in closed session to develop recommendations 
concerning the performance of the Interim County Administrator.  
 
Following said closed session, the Committee will reconvene in open session to consider and/act 
on any matter noticed herein, including reconvening in closed session as herein noticed.   
 

9. Calendar:  Next Meeting and Agenda Items 
10. Adjourn 
 
This meeting is open the public according to Wisconsin Statute § 19.83.  Persons with disabilities 
wishing to attend and/or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715-485-9226) at 
least 24 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable accommodations can be 
made.  Requests are confidential. 
 



1 
 

PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
                                W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  
 
                                                Executive Committee  

100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 
Polk County Government Center - County Board Room 

Minutes of Executive Committee from Tuesday, June 12, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. 
 

Committee Members present:  Dean Johansen, Jay Luke, Brian Masters, John Bonneprise, and Chris 
Nelson.  

Others present: Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk; Jeff Fuge, Interim County Administrator; Andrea 
Jerrick, Deputy County Administrator; Debbie Peterson, Director of Parks & Buildings; Supervisor Tracy 
LaBlanc; members of the public and member of the press.  

Chairman Johansen called the meeting to order at 4:05 p.m. 

Chairman Johansen called for motion to adopt the agenda. Motion (Luke/Bonneprise) to adopt the June 
12, 2018 agenda as published.  Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adopt the 
agenda. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 

Chairman Johansen called for motion to adopt May 10, 2018 minutes of Executive Committee. Motion 
(Masters/Luke) to adopt the minutes of May 10, 2018 as published. Chairman Johansen called for a 
voice vote on the motion to adopt the minutes as published. Motion to adopt minutes as published 
carried by unanimous voice vote.  

Time was given for public comment. No public comment was received. 

Overview of Committee Assigned Functions, Duties, and Responsibilities: Committee discussed assigned 
functions of Executive Committee.  

Committee received information from Deputy Administrator Jerrick regarding change order costs on the 
Highway Building project including change order tracking sheets. Supervisor Nelson inquired as to 
whether sand and trucking costs would be tracked with other change order costs. Cost of sand used and 
trucking cost is tracked separately internally and does not appear on Market & Johnson tracking cost 
information per Deputy Administrator Jerrick. Chair Johansen asked that costs of sand and trucking be 
added to cost tracking information. Demolition of old highway building request for proposals will be 
released Thursday 6/14 by Market & Johnson with prebid meeting scheduled for 6/21, and demolition 
request for proposals due 6/28. 

Committee received an update concerning the office of County Administrator from Deputy 
Administrator Jerrick. Public Administration Associates compiled input from meetings with Board and 
staff.  Committee received a profile for County Administrator developed in prior years outlining desired 
characteristics in an administrator from Chairman Johansen. Position recruitment announcement for 
County Administrator position will go out this week.  Applications for County Administrator are due July 

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


2 
 

9th.  Executive Committee will review resumes/applications on July 13 in closed session with final 
selection of Administrator scheduled for end of August. 

 Recommendation concerning the plan of Fairgrounds grandstand replacement: 

Chairman Johansen called upon Debbie Peterson for update regarding Grandstand replacement. 
Committee received information from Interim Administrator Fuge regarding meeting with Fair Society. 
Chairman Johansen called upon Fair Society representative, Dale Wood for information regarding 
Grandstand project design. Chairman Johansen asked fair representatives to bring proposed preliminary 
project plans/designs/ideas/costs should be presented to Debbie Peterson who will submit the plans to 
the City of St Croix Falls for approval. Proposed plan(s) will then be submitted to the Executive 
Committee for further consideration. 

Future meeting: 

Friday, July 13, 2018 with closed session to review resumes for County Administrator 

Agenda Items for next meeting: 

Review administrator resumes, Fair Grandstand project 

Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adjourn. Motion (Bonneprise/Masters) to adjourn. Motion 
carried by unanimous voice vote. Chairman Johansen declared meeting adjourned at 4:37 p.m. 
                 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

Sharon E. Jorgenson 
Polk County Clerk 
 

 

 

 




























	Exec Comm 7-17-2018 Minutes
	Executive Committee 7-17-18 Packet for Web
	Exec Comm Agenda 7-17-18
	Exec Comm 6-12-18 Minutes
	Res 64-18 July
	Res 62-18 July
	Res 63-18 July
	Res 59-18 July

	Hwy Change Order -July mtg
	Schedule for Hiring of Admin
	Fair Grandstand Info

